
NOTICE OF MEETING

Meeting Executive Member for Education Decision Day

Date and Time Monday, 13th March, 2017 at 3.00 pm

Place Chute Room, EII Court South, The Castle, Winchester

Enquiries to members.services@hants.gov.uk

John Coughlan CBE
Chief Executive
The Castle, Winchester SO23 8UJ

FILMING AND BROADCAST NOTIFICATION
This meeting may be recorded and broadcast live on the County Council’s website.  
The meeting may also be recorded and broadcast by the press and members of the 
public – please see the Filming Protocol available on the County Council’s website.

AGENDA

1. ROMSEY PRIMARY SCHOOL 1 FE EXPANSION  (Pages 3 - 16)

To consider a report of the Director of Culture, Communities and 
Business Services regarding project proposals for the expansion of 
Romsey Primary School.

2. BISHOPS WALTHAM INFANT AND JUNIOR SCHOOLS EXPANSION  
(Pages 17 - 30)

To consider a report of the Director of Culture, Communities and 
Business Services regarding project proposals for the expansion of 
Bishops Waltham Infant and Junior Schools.

ABOUT THIS AGENDA:
On request, this agenda can be provided in alternative versions (such as 
large print, Braille or audio) and in alternative languages.

ABOUT THIS MEETING:
The press and public are welcome to attend the public sessions of the 
meeting. If you have any particular requirements, for example if you require 
wheelchair access, please contact members.services@hants.gov.uk for 
assistance.

Public Document Pack

mailto:members.services@hants.gov.uk


County Councillors attending as appointed members of this Committee or by 
virtue of Standing Order 18.5; or with the concurrence of the Chairman in 
connection with their duties as members of the Council or as a local County 
Councillor qualify for travelling expenses.



Agenda Item: 1 

1 

 
HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

 
Decision Report 

 

Decision Maker: Executive Member for Education 

Date: 13 March 2017 

Title: Romsey Primary School 1 FE Expansion 

Reference: 8108 

Report From: Director of Culture, Communities and Business Services 

Contact names: Steve Clow and Bob Wallbridge  

Tel: 
01962 847858 

01962 847894 
Email: 

steve.clow@hants.gov.uk 

bob.wallbridge@hants.gov.uk 

1. Executive Summary 

1.1. This report seeks approval to the project proposals for the permanent 
expansion of Romsey Primary School, at an estimated total cost of 
£2,879,000. 

1.2. The purpose of this paper is also to obtain spend and procurement 
approval for contracting activity associated with the project. 

1.3. This project is required to provide additional pupil places at the school in 
response to recent housing development in the local area. 

2. Scope of Work 

2.1. It is proposed to extend Romsey Primary School to increase the school’s 
capacity from a 1 Form of Entry (FE) to a 2FE (an increase from 210 to 
420 pupils). 

2.2. Funding for the project was approved at the Executive Lead Member for 
Children’s Services Decision Day on 18 January 2017 and this report 
outlines the available budget from within which the project must be 
designed and delivered. 

3. Contextual Information 

3.1 Romsey Primary School is located off Mercer Way in Romsey.  The 
school’s net capacity is 210 and there are currently 191 pupils on roll.   

3.2 It is proposed that the works be procured through the Intermediate 
Construction Framework. It is anticipated that works will commence on site 
during Autumn 2017 and complete during Summer 2018. 

3.3 It is proposed that the contractor will access the school site via the 
school’s main entrance off Mercer Way.  The contractor’s compound will 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



Agenda Item: 2 
  

 2 

be located adjacent to the proposed extension and former Children’s 
Centre.  

3.4 No deliveries or movements of vehicles will take place at the start or end 
of the school day, in order to avoid traffic conflict when pupils are arriving 
at or departing from the school.  

3.5 The school site will remain in use during the construction period and local 
management arrangements will be put in place to manage the health and 
safety impact to all users.   

4 Finance 

4.1 Capital Expenditure: 

 The Capital Expenditure has already been approved; the following tables 
outline the breakdown of its distribution across the project: 

 

Capital Expenditure Current Estimate 

 £’000 

Capital Programme  

   £’000 

Buildings 2,471 2,471 

Fees 408 408 

 2,879 2,879  

  

4.2 Sources of Funding: 

 

Financial Provision for Total 
Scheme 

Buildings 

£’000 

Fees 

£’000 

Total Cost 

£’000 

1. From Own Resources 
   

a) Capital Programme (as above) 
835 138 973 

2. From Other Resources    

a) Developer’s Contribution 
1,636 270 1,906 

Total 
2,471 408 2,879 

Contingency 
  34 

Total 
  2,913 

 
 
4.3 The Director of Culture Communities and Business Services will continue 

to apply downward pressure on costs, as far as practicable, to counter the 
rising prices currently being experienced in the construction industry due 
to inflation and the shortage of capacity and resources.  The current 

Page 4



Agenda Item: 2 
  

 3 

estimate is subject to inflationary increases up to the time of financial close 
and concluding a fixed price. The latest assessment of the uplift required 
is £34,000 including fees.  This cost will be funded from provision that has 
already been identified within the Children’s Services capital programme 
to allow for inflation.  It is proposed that the final amount of additional 
funding required for inflation will be allocated under officer’s delegation up 
to the maximum limit identified above. The capital charges are based on 
the maximum provision.          

 

a) Building Cost:  

  Gross Cost = £2,704 per m2 

 

 Net cost is not provided due to the amount of refurbishment and 
alterations work included in the costs  

 

b) Furniture & Equipment: 

Included in the above figures is an allocation of approximately £131,000 
for the provision of all loose furniture, fittings, equipment and I.T. (inclusive 
of fees). 

 
 

c) School Balances:  

 The school has the following level of balances: 
 

Published revenue balance as at 31 March 2016: £61,342.18  
  
 Devolved capital as at 31 March 2016: £19,460.07 
 

4.4 Revenue Issues: 

a) Overview of Revenue Implications: 

 

 (a) 
Employees 

£’000 

(b)       
Other 

£’000 

(a+b)     

*Net Current 
Expenditure 
£’000 

(c)    
Capital    
Charges 
£’000 

(a + b + c) 
Total Net 
Expenditure 
£’000 

Revenue 
Implications 
Additional + / 
Reductions 

0 0 0 160 160 

 

b) Energy Consumption: 

 The estimated annual energy consumption for the new accommodation 
will meet that required by current Building Regulations. 

Page 5



Agenda Item: 2 
  

 4 

5 Risk & Impact Issues 

5.1 Please see Appendix B for a summary of the risk and impact issues 
considered in relation to the design of this project.  

6 Details of site and existing Infrastructure 

6.1 The Primary school was formed in 2006 when the original Infant and 
Junior schools amalgamated.  The existing school building was built in 
1974 and is single storey of SCOLA construction.  Elevations are of brick, 
render and timber cladding.  Windows and doors are of aluminium.  Two 
classroom extensions were added in 1994 and 2008.  The existing 
building was significantly enlarged in 2011 to create a 1FE Primary 
school.  The existing building was also reclad as part of this project which 
included the addition of a Pre-school. 

6.2 The existing mains services and drainage infrastructure at the site will be 
sufficient to accommodate the project proposals.  

6.3 No permanent alterations to the main vehicular entrance to the school will 
be made as a result of the proposals.  

7 Scope of the Project 

7.1 The expansion works at Romsey Primary School will include:  

 4 new classrooms 

 Conversion of the former Children’s Centre building into 3 further 
classrooms 

 2 group rooms 

 Additional group rooms and Learning Resource area 

 Extension of the school hall 

 Additional pupil toilets 

8 The Proposed Building 

8.1 The proposed single storey extension is designed to complement the 
form, character and scale of the recent expansion at the school.  External 
walls will be brickwork with timber cladding and high performance roofs 
with roof lights to provide good daylighting and natural ventilation to the 
classrooms.  Windows and doors will be powder coated aluminium.  

9 External Works 

9.1 The external landscape proposals at Romsey Primary School will include: 

 Extended play areas 

 New soft landscaping and footpath  

 Additional car parking 

 Additional cycle and scooter storage  

 Tree removal and replacement tree planting 

Page 6



Agenda Item: 2 
  

 5 

10 Car Parking 

10.1 The project will provide additional car parking on the school site which will 
be in line with the Hampshire County Council On-Site School Parking 
Guidelines (approved by the Executive Lead Member for Children’s 
Services on 25 March 2013). There will be 14 additional car parking 
spaces provided for staff and visitors, 1 of which will be fully accessible. 

11 Planning 

11.1 A planning application was submitted in February 2017.  

12  Building Management 

12.1 The existing building management arrangements will remain in place.  

13 Professional Resources 

Architectural  - Culture, Communities & Business Services   
Landscape - Culture, Communities & Business Services    
Mechanical & Electrical - Culture, Communities & Business Services    
Structural Engineering - Culture, Communities & Business Services   
Quantity Surveying - Culture, Communities & Business Services   
Principal Designer - Culture, Communities & Business Services   
Drainage - Economy, Transport and Environment 
Arboriculturalist     - Economy, Transport and Environment  
Ecologist    - Economy, Transport and Environment 
 

14 Consultations 

14.1 The following have been consulted during the development of this project 
and feedback can be seen in overview in Appendix C: 

Headteacher 
School Governors 
Children’s Services 
Executive Lead Member for Children’s Services 
Local County Councillor 
Local Residents  
Fire Officer 
Access Officer 
Planning Department 
Archaeologist 
 

15 Recommendations 

15.1 That the Executive Member for Education gives approval to the project 
proposals for the 1FE expansion at Romsey Primary School, at an 
estimated total cost of £2,879,000. 

Page 7



Agenda Item: 2 
  

 6 

15.2 That the Executive Member for Education grants procurement and spend 
approval for contracting activity associated with the project as outlined in 
Section 3.2 of this report. 

15.3 That the proposals in paragraph 4.3 for the application of inflation up to 
£34,000 (including fees) be approved. 

 

Page 8



Integral Appendix A 
  

7 

CORPORATE OR LEGAL INFORMATION: 
 

Links to the Corporate Strategy 
 

Hampshire safer and more secure for all:     
no 

Corporate Improvement plan link number (if appropriate): 

Maximising well-being: 
yes 

Corporate Improvement plan link number (if appropriate): 

Enhancing our quality of place: 
yes 

Corporate Improvement plan link number (if appropriate): 

 
 

Other Significant Links 

Links to previous Member decisions:  

Title Reference Date 
 
Children’s Services Capital Programme 2016/17 
to 2018/19 
Children’s Services Capital Programme 2017/18 
to 2019/20 

 
6697 
 
7917 

 
20.01.2016 
 
18.01.2017 

   

Direct links to specific legislation or Government Directives   

Title Date 
  
  

 
 
 

Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents 
  
The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an 
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in 
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any 
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in 
the Act.) 
 
Document Location 

None  

Page 9

http://www3.hants.gov.uk/councilmeetings/advsearchmeetings/meetingsitemdocuments.htm?sta=&pref=Y&item_ID=6997&tab=2&co=&confidential=
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/councilmeetings/advsearchmeetings/meetingsitemdocuments.htm?sta=&pref=Y&item_ID=6997&tab=2&co=&confidential=
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/councilmeetings/advsearchmeetings/meetingsitemdocuments.htm?sta=&pref=Y&item_ID=7917&tab=2&co=&confidential=
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/councilmeetings/advsearchmeetings/meetingsitemdocuments.htm?sta=&pref=Y&item_ID=7917&tab=2&co=&confidential=


Integral Appendix B 

8 

 
RISK & COMBINED IMPACT ASSESSMENT: 

 

1. Equality Duty 

1.1 The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 
(‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to: 

 Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct 

prohibited under the Act; 

 Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 

protected characteristic (age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and 

maternity, race, religion or belief, gender and sexual orientation) and those 

who do not share it; 

 Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 

characteristic and persons who do not share it.  

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to: 

a) The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons sharing 

a relevant characteristic connected to that characteristic; 

 

b) Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected 

characteristic different from the needs of persons who do not share it; 

 

c) Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to participate 

in public life or in any other activity which participation by such persons is 

disproportionally low. 

 

1.2 Equality Impact Assessment: 

a) The project proposals will have a low or now impact on groups with protected 

characteristics. 

 
b) The expansion to the existing school will provide additional indoor and 

outdoor learning space for school aged pupils. The proposed accommodation 

will all be accessible, and supported by additional facilities such as an new 

toilet blocks, an accessible WC, and storage space. The expansion will 

provide a wider benefit to the local community. In order to complete the works 

whilst the school is in operation there is the potential for some minor 

disruption to pupils, staff, parents and local residents. Children's Services, the 

design team, contractor and school will work collaboratively to minimise the 

impact of these works through careful planning and management. 

 Crime Prevention Issues: 

2.1 The County Council has a legal obligation under Section 17 of the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998 to consider the impact of all the decisions it makes on the 

Page 10



Agenda Item: 2 
  

 9 

prevention of crime and disorder in the County. The proposals in this report 
have no impact on the prevention of crime. 

3. Fire Risk Assessment 

3.1 Sprinkler systems shall be installed in new and refurbished buildings where 
appropriate, based upon a risk assessment methodology.          

3.2 With respect to fire safety and property protection, the proposals have been 
risk assessed in line with the agreed Property Services procedures, and 
confirmed that the provision of sprinklers is not required in this instance.  

3.3 The proposals will meet the requirements of the Building Regulations (BB100 
Fire Safety in Schools), including enhancements beyond minimum provision, 
and are consistent with current fire safety legislation, the partnership 
arrangement with Hampshire Fire and Rescue Services, and are in line with 
the County Council’s policy to manage corporate risk.  

3.4 The project proposals include the following fire safety and enhanced features: 

 Additional automatic fire protection, with full (24/7) remote monitoring. 

 External finishes specified as fire resistant. 

 Consideration of secure by design principles including specific site 
security, bin storage away from building, external lighting etc.  

4 Health and Safety 

4.1 Design risk assessments, pre-construction health & safety information and a 
Health & Safety File will be produced and initiated in accordance with the 
Construction Design and Management Regulations for the proposed scheme. 

5 Climate Change: 

5.1 The project will incorporate the following sustainability features:  

 A highly insulated building envelope for the extension including high 
performance windows, doors and roof lights to reduce energy 
consumption.  

 Energy efficient lighting and heating controls, as each light fitting will 
be day-light linked with absence detection to ensure the minimum 
energy is used. 

 External lighting to provide safe access and emergency escape routes 
that will be carefully designed to prevent light pollution to avoid 
nuisance to residential properties. 

 Low water-consumption sanitary installations.  

 Natural ventilation to main spaces  

 Provision of good levels of day lighting to all teaching areas to reduce 
the need for artificial lighting and energy use. 

 Solar controlled glass will be installed to south facing windows to assist 
in the control of solar gain. 

Page 11



Agenda Item: 2 
  

 10 

 Strategic placement of extended roof canopies above large glazing 
areas to avoid summer time overheating. 

 The School extension will include appropriately sized Photovoltaic 
Solar Panels. 

 The use of timber from sustainable sources. 

 

Page 12



Integral Appendix C 
  

 11 

FEEDBACK FROM CONSULTEES: 
 

OTHER EXECUTIVE MEMBERS: 

Executive 
Member & 
Portfolio 

Reason for 
Consultation 

Date 
Consulted 

Response: 

Councillor Keith 
Mans, Executive 
Lead Member 
for Children’s 
Services 

Portfolio Holder   

 
 

OTHER FORMAL CONSULTEES: 

 

Member/ 
Councillor 

Reason for 
Consultation 

Date 
Consulted 

Response: 

Councillor  Mark 
Cooper 

Local Member for 
Romsey Town 

 XXX 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning
1:1250 @

 A3

N
ov 2016

©
 C

row
n copyright and database rights

2015. All rights reserved. H
C

C
100019180.

16057
project

-
R

FT
originator-

00
volum

e

-
level

XX
type

D
R

-
-

role

A
-

num
ber

0000

status
suitability description

S2
Suitable for Inform

ation
revision

P04

Location Plan

R
om

sey Prim
ary School

Expansion Feasibility from
 1FE to 2FE

Prim
ary School (420 C

apacity)

N

Cupernham Lane

M
ercer W

ay

Latham
 Road

Latham
 R

oad

G
reat W

ell D
rive

N

Planning Application Boundary

Land O
w

nership
27.012,4 m

² (w
ithin school grounds)

9.113,3 m
²

0
62.5 M

3D View showing rear of proposed three classroom block

Proposed school hall extension west elevation                       Three classroom extension west elevation3D View of east elevation

6
7

4
1

5

8

11

a a
b

c

N

d

M
ercer W

ay

Existing Site Location Plan

Not to Scale

February 2017

Romsey Primary School 
1FE Expansion to Form a 2FE Primary 
School

Proposed Site & Building 

Project Appraisal

1
2
3
4
5

6
7
8
9

Existing Primary School
Proposed Hall Expansion
Proposed Three Classroom block
Proposed Reception Classroom 

Proposed Conversion of Former Childrens 
Centre
Proposed Additional Parking 
Existing Car Park
Existing Playing Fields
Extended Playground
 

 

P11100 - A - 100 Rev A

School Site Boundary

Pedestrian Access

Vehicular Access

Contractor Access

Key to Proposed Site Plan:

a
b
c

d

Existing Primary School
Existing PreSchool
Former Children's Centre to be 
refurbished
School Playing Field

Key to Location Plan:

Non-Teaching - Refurbishment.

Teaching - New Build

Teaching - Refurbishment.

Non-Teaching - New Build

© Crown Copyright and database rights 
2016. All rights reserved. HCC 
100019180.

N

2

3

6

9

Existing HallHall Extension Proposed Three Classroom Block

Proposed site plan showing primary school expansion

G
reat W

ell D
rive

Mercer Way

Cupernham Lane

P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item: 2 

1 

 
HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

 
Decision Report 

 

Decision Maker: Executive Member for Education 

Date: 13 March 2017 

Title: Bishops Waltham Infant and Junior Schools Expansion 

Reference: 8107 

Report From: Director of Culture, Communities and Business Services 

Contact names: Steve Clow and Bob Wallbridge  

Tel: 
01962 847858 

01962 847894 
Email: 

steve.clow@hants.gov.uk 

bob.wallbridge@hants.gov.uk 

1. Executive Summary 

1.1. This report seeks approval to the project proposals for the permanent 
expansion of Bishops Waltham Infant and Junior Schools in Bishops 
Waltham, at an estimated total cost of £3,376,000. 

1.2. The purpose of this paper is also to obtain spend and procurement 
approval for contracting activity associated with the project. 

1.3. This project is required to provide additional pupil places at the schools 
arising from an increase in student numbers in the local area. 

2. Scope of Work 

2.1. It is proposed to construct a single storey 3 classroom extension together 
with internal alterations to Bishops Waltham Infant School to increase the 
schools capacity from a 2 Form of Entry (FE) to a 3FE (an increase from 
180 to 270 infant school pupils). 

2.2. It is proposed to construct a 2 storey 2 classroom extension together with 
internal alterations to Bishops Waltham Junior School to increase the 
schools capacity from a 2FE to a 3FE (an increase from 240 to 360 
pupils).  

2.3. Funding for the project was approved at the Executive Lead Member for 
Children’s Services Decision Day on 18 January 2017 and this report 
outlines the available budget from within which the project must be 
designed and delivered. 

3. Contextual Information 

3.1 Bishops Waltham Infant and Junior Schools are located off Oak Road in 
Bishops Waltham.  Access to each school is via separate entrances.  The 
Infant school’s net capacity is 180 and there are currently 169 pupils on 

Page 17

Agenda Item 2



Agenda Item: 3 
  

 2 

roll.  The Junior school’s net capacity is 240 and there are currently 226 
pupils on roll. 

3.2 It is proposed that the works be procured through the Intermediate 
Construction Framework. It is anticipated that works will commence on site 
during Autumn 2017 and complete during Summer 2018. 

3.3 It is proposed that the contractor will access the school sites by the main 
school entrances off Oak Road.  The contractor’s compounds will be 
located adjacent to the proposed extensions.  

3.4 No deliveries or movements of vehicles will take place at the start or end 
of the school day, in order to avoid traffic conflict when pupils are arriving 
at or departing from the schools.  

3.5 The school sites will remain in use during the construction period and local 
management arrangements will be put in place to manage the health and 
safety impact to all users.   

4 Finance 

4.1 Capital Expenditure: 

 The Capital Expenditure has already been approved; the following tables 
outline the breakdown of its distribution across the project: 

 

Capital Expenditure Current Estimate 

 £’000 

Capital Programme  

   £’000 

Buildings 2,898 2,898 

Fees 478 478 

 3,376* 3,376 * 

 * The means by which the difference between the Current Estimate and the 
Capital Programme allocation is to be met are shown in the table below: 

 

4.2 Sources of Funding: 

Financial Provision for Total 
Scheme 

Buildings 

£’000 

Fees 

£’000 

Total Cost 

£’000 

1. From Own Resources 
   

a) Capital Programme (as above) 
1,353 223 1,576 

2. From Other Resources    

a) Developer’s Contribution 
1,545 255 1,800 

Total 
2,898 478 3,376 

Contingency 
  55 

Page 18



Agenda Item: 3 
  

 3 

Total 
  3,431 

 
 
4.3 The Director of Culture Communities and Business Services will continue 

to apply downward pressure on costs, as far as practicable, to counter the 
rising prices currently being experienced in the construction industry due 
to inflation and the shortage of capacity and resources.  The current 
estimate is subject to inflationary increases up to the time of financial close 
and concluding a fixed price. The latest assessment of the uplift required 
is £55,000 including fees.  This cost will be funded from provision that has 
already been identified within the Children’s Services capital programme 
to allow for inflation.  It is proposed that the final amount of additional 
funding required for inflation will be allocated under officer’s delegation up 
to the maximum limit identified above. The capital charges are based on 
the maximum provision.          

 

a) Building Cost:  

 Net Cost = £2,667 per m2  

 Gross Cost = £3,540 per m2 

 

b) Furniture & Equipment: 

Included in the above figures is an allocation of approximately £222,893 
for the provision of all loose furniture, fittings, equipment and I.T. (inclusive 
of fees). 

   

c) School Balances:  

 The school has the following level of balances: 
 

Published revenue balance as at 31 March 2016: 
                                                                                             Infant £60,652.35 
                                                                                             Junior £95,376.43 
  
 Devolved capital as at 31 March 2016:        Infant: £14,157.04

              Junior: £ 1,440.11
  

 

4.4 Revenue Issues: 

a) Overview of Revenue Implications: 

 

 (a) 
Employees 

£’000 

(b)       
Other 

£’000 

(a+b)     

*Net Current 
Expenditure 
£’000 

(c)    
Capital    
Charges 
£’000 

(a + b + c) 
Total Net 
Expenditure 
£’000 

Revenue 
Implications 

0 0 0 194 194 

Page 19



Agenda Item: 3 
  

 4 

Additional + / 
Reductions 

 

b) Energy Consumption: 

 The estimated annual energy consumption for the new accommodation 
will meet that required by current Building Regulations. 

5. Risk & Impact Issues 

5.1 Please see Appendix B for a summary of the risk and impact issues 
considered in relation to the design of this project.  

6. Details of site and existing Infrastructure 

6.1. The existing Infant school building was built in 1988 and is single storey 
with a pitched roof. Elevations are of traditional brickwork with painted 
timber windows.  A new staff room was added in 1993.  

6.2. The existing Junior school building was built of SCOLA construction in 
1968. Elevations are of traditional brickwork and aluminium cladding and 
windows.  Three extensions were added in 1995, 1997 and 2003. A 
swimming pool was built in 1970.  

6.3. The existing mains services and surface drainage infrastructure at the site 
will be sufficient to accommodate the project proposals.  However foul 
water drainage at the site requires upgrading to provide greater capacity. 

6.4. No permanent alterations to the main vehicular entrance to the schools 
will be made as a result of the proposals.  

7. Scope of the Project 

7.1. The expansion works at Bishops Waltham Infant School will include: 

 3 new classrooms 

 Additional toilets 

 Additional hall storage facilities 

 Conversion of the existing staff room to create access to the extension 
and a new head teachers office 

 A replacement staff room 

 Extension to the existing kitchen 

 External works including replacement and additional car parking 

 

7.2. The expansion works at Bishops Waltham Junior School will include: 

 2 new classrooms 

 Additional toilets 

Page 20



Agenda Item: 3 
  

 5 

 Conversion of an existing ICT suite and library into 2 additional 
classrooms 

 Internal alterations to relocate the library to the ground floor 

8. The Proposed Building 

8.1. The proposed single and two storey extensions are designed to 
complement the form, character and scale of the original buildings which 
they adjoin.   

8.2. The Infant school external walls will be of brick and timber cladding to 
complement the character of the existing school building.  Windows and 
doors will be aluminium.  The roof will be pitched with roof lights and 
photovoltaic panels. 

8.3. The Junior school is to be refurbished as part of Hampshire County 
Council’s SCOLA re-cladding programme (subject to funding approval) 
and the proposed works have been designed to complement this. External 
walls will be of brick and render with aluminium windows and doors. 

9. External Works 

9.1. The external landscape proposals at Bishops Waltham Infant School will 
include: 

 Replacement of relocated staff car park, and 8 additional spaces 

 New cycle and scooter shelter 

 New fencing to the Early Years area 

 New pedestrian access path 

 New bin store 

 Tree removal and replacement planting 

  

9.2. The external landscape proposals at Bishops Waltham Junior School will 
include: 

 New footpath from Free Street 

 8 additional car parking spaces 

 New cycle and scooter shelter 

10. Car Parking 

10.1. The project will provide additional car parking on the school site which will 
be in line with the Hampshire County Council On-Site School Parking 
Guidelines (approved by the Executive Lead Member for Children’s 
Services on 25 March 2013). There will be 16 additional car parking 
spaces provided for staff, 2 of which will be fully accessible. (8 additional 
spaces for each school.) 

11. Planning 

Page 21



Agenda Item: 3 
  

 6 

11.1. A planning application was submitted in February 2017.  

12. Building Management 

12.1. The existing building management arrangements will remain in place.  

13. Professional Resources  
Architectural  - Culture, Communities & Business Services   
Landscape - Culture, Communities & Business Services    
Mechanical & Electrical - Culture, Communities & Business Services    
Structural Engineering - Culture, Communities & Business Services   
Quantity Surveying - Culture, Communities & Business Services   
Principal Designer - Culture, Communities & Business Services   
Drainage - Economy, Transport and Environment 
Arboriculturalist     - Economy, Transport and Environment  
Ecologist    - Economy, Transport and Environment 
 

14. Consultations 

14.1. The following have been consulted during the development of this project 
and feedback can be seen in overview in Appendix C: 

Headteacher 
School Governors 
Children’s Services 
Executive Lead Member for Children’s Services 
Local County Councillor 
Local Residents (Public drop in sessions 18.01.17) 
Fire Officer 
Access Officer 
Planning Department 
Crime Prevention Officer   

15. Recommendations 

15.1. That the Executive Member for Education gives approval to the project 
proposals for the 1FE Expansions at Bishops Waltham Infant and Junior 
Schools, at an estimated total cost of £3,376,000. 

15.2. That the Executive Member for Education grants procurement and spend 
approval for contracting activity associated with the project as outlined in 
Section 3.2 of this report. 

15.3. That the proposals in paragraph 4.3 for the application of inflation up to 
£55,000 (including fees) be approved. 

 

Page 22



Integral Appendix A 
  

7 

CORPORATE OR LEGAL INFORMATION: 
 

Links to the Corporate Strategy 
 

Hampshire safer and more secure for all:     
no 

Corporate Improvement plan link number (if appropriate): 

Maximising well-being: 
yes 

Corporate Improvement plan link number (if appropriate): 

Enhancing our quality of place: 
yes 

Corporate Improvement plan link number (if appropriate): 

 
 

Other Significant Links 

Links to previous Member decisions:  

Title Reference Date 
 
Children’s Services Capital Programme 2016/17 
to 2018/19 
Children’s Services Capital Programme 2017/18 
to 2019/20 

 
6997 
 
7917 

 
20.01.2016 
 
18.01.2017 

   

Direct links to specific legislation or Government Directives   

Title Date 
  
  

 
 
 

Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents 
  
The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an 
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in 
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any 
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in 
the Act.) 
 
Document Location 

None  

Page 23

http://www3.hants.gov.uk/councilmeetings/advsearchmeetings/meetingsitemdocuments.htm?sta=&pref=Y&item_ID=6997&tab=2&co=&confidential=
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/councilmeetings/advsearchmeetings/meetingsitemdocuments.htm?sta=&pref=Y&item_ID=6997&tab=2&co=&confidential=
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/councilmeetings/advsearchmeetings/meetingsitemdocuments.htm?sta=&pref=Y&item_ID=7917&tab=2&co=&confidential=
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/councilmeetings/advsearchmeetings/meetingsitemdocuments.htm?sta=&pref=Y&item_ID=7917&tab=2&co=&confidential=


Integral Appendix B 

8 

 
RISK & COMBINED IMPACT ASSESSMENT: 

 

1. Equality Duty 

1.1. The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 
(‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to: 

 Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct 

prohibited under the Act; 

 Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 

protected characteristic (age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and 

maternity, race, religion or belief, gender and sexual orientation) and those 

who do not share it; 

 Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 

characteristic and persons who do not share it.  

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to: 

a) The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons sharing 

a relevant characteristic connected to that characteristic; 

 

b) Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected 

characteristic different from the needs of persons who do not share it; 

 

c) Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to participate 

in public life or in any other activity which participation by such persons is 

disproportionally low. 

 

1.2. Equality Impact Assessment: 

a)  As an expansion to an existing school the works should enhance the 
existing services therefore having a positive impact the local community. 
The expansion will generate additional learning places for school age 
pupils. The expansion will give positive connectivity for disabled students 
to access the whole school via internal corridors or external canopy links. 
The expansion provides a new accessible toilet for disabled students. 

b) In order to excute the works whilst the school is occupied there will be the 
potential for minimal disruption to pupils, teachers, parents and local 
residents for a short period. 

2 Crime Prevention Issues: 

2.1 The County Council has a legal obligation under Section 17 of the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998 to consider the impact of all the decisions it makes on the 
prevention of crime and disorder in the County. The proposals in this report 
have no impact on the prevention of crime. 

Page 24



Agenda Item: 3 
  

 9 

3. Fire Risk Assessment 

3.1. Sprinkler systems shall be installed in new and refurbished buildings where 
appropriate, based upon a risk assessment methodology.          

3.2. With respect to fire safety and property protection, the proposals have been 
risk assessed in line with the agreed Property Services procedures, and 
confirmed that the provision of sprinklers is not required in this instance.  

3.3. The proposals will meet the requirements of the Building Regulations (BB100 
Fire Safety in Schools), including enhancements beyond minimum provision, 
and are consistent with current fire safety legislation, the partnership 
arrangement with Hampshire Fire and Rescue Services, and are in line with 
the County Council’s policy to manage corporate risk.  

3.4. The project proposals include the following fire safety and enhanced features: 

 Additional automatic fire protection, with full (24/7) remote 
monitoring. 

 External finishes specified as fire resistant. 

 Consideration of secure by design principles including specific site 
security, bin storage away from building, external lighting etc.  

4. Health and Safety 

4.1 Design risk assessments, pre-construction health & safety information and a 
Health & Safety File will be produced and initiated in accordance with the 
Construction Design and Management Regulations for the proposed scheme. 

5. Climate Change: 

5.1. The project will incorporate the following sustainability features:  

 A highly insulated building envelope for the extension including high 
performance windows, doors and roof lights to reduce energy 
consumption.  

 Energy efficient lighting and heating controls, as each light fitting will 
be day-light linked with absence detection to ensure the minimum 
energy is used. 

 External lighting to provide safe access and emergency escape 
routes that will be carefully designed to prevent light pollution to 
avoid nuisance to residential properties. 

 Low water-consumption sanitary installations.  

 Natural ventilation to main spaces. 

 Provision of good levels of day lighting to all teaching areas to 
reduce the need for artificial lighting and energy use. 

 Solar controlled glass will be installed to south facing windows to 
assist in the control of solar gain. 

 Strategic placement of extended roof canopies above large glazing 
areas to avoid summer time overheating. 

Page 25



Agenda Item: 3 
  

 10 

 In line with HCC policy the Schools  extension will include 
appropriately sized Photovoltaic Solar Panels. 

 The use of timber from sustainable sources. 

Page 26



Integral Appendix C 
  

 11 

FEEDBACK FROM CONSULTEES: 
 

OTHER EXECUTIVE MEMBERS: 

Executive 
Member & 
Portfolio 

Reason for 
Consultation 

Date 
Consulted 

Response: 

Councillor Keith 
Mans, Executive 
Lead Member 
for Children’s 
Services 

Portfolio Holder   

 
 

OTHER FORMAL CONSULTEES: 

 

Member/ 
Councillor 

Reason for 
Consultation 

Date 
Consulted 

Response: 

Councillor Rob 
Humby 

Local Member for 
Bishops Waltham 

 XXX 

 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning

1:100 @ A1

Sep 2016

© Crown copyright and database rights
2015. All rights reserved. HCC
100019180.

16056
project

- RFT
originator

- 0A
volume

-
level

XX
type

DR- -
role

A -
number

0401

Elevations

status suitability description

S0 Suitable for Information
revision

P06

Bishops Waltham Infant
and Junior School
Expansion from 2FE to 3FE Infant
School

Expansion from 2FE to 3FE Junior
School

Ve
rti

ca
l ti

m
be

r c
lad

din
g,

op
en

 jo
int

ed

Fi
br

e 
ce

m
en

t r
ain

 sc
re

en

cla
dd

ing

PP
C 

Al
um

ini
um

/tim
be

r

co
m

po
sit

e 
gla

zin
g

PP
C 

ed
ge

tri
mpa

ra
pe

t w
all

 to
 p

ich
ed

 ro
of

br
ick

 to
 m

at
ch

 e
xis

tin
g

Fa
cin

g
Br

ick
wo

rk

Proposed Extension

Existing Building(beyond)

Ph
ot

o 
Vo

lta
ic 

Pa
ne

ls

Ne
w

fe
nc

e

Ve
rti

ca
l ti

m
be

r c
lad

din
g,

op
en

 jo
int

ed

PP
C 

Al
um

ini
um

/T
im

be
r

co
m

po
sit

e 
wi

nd
ow

 in
 e

xis
tin

g

br
ick

 w
all

Fa
cin

g 
Br

ick

PPC alum
inium

 trim

PPC Alum
inium

 cladding Ne
w 

fre
t c

ut
 st

ain
les

s

ste
el 

sig
na

ge

Proposed ExtensionExisting Building

Ve
rti

ca
l ti

m
be

r c
lad

din
g,

op
en

 jo
int

ed

Fi
br

e 
ce

m
en

t r
ain

 sc
re

en

cla
dd

ing

PP
C 

Al
um

ini
um

/tim
be

r

co
m

po
sit

e 
gla

zin
g

PP
C 

Al
um

ini
um

 h
igh

 le
ve

l

op
en

ab
le 

gla
zin

g

PP
C 

ed
ge

tri
m Br

ick
 in

fil 
to

 e
xis

itn
g

cle
re

sto
ry

 w
ind

ow
s

Fa
cin

g
Br

ick
wo

rk

Proposed Extension Existing Building

Existing
School

Building

E-
01

E-02

E-03

N

Refurbished

R
ef

ur
bi

sh
ed

Proposed
Extension

Pool

Existing

School

Building

Proposed

2 story

extension

R
efurbism

ent

to LR
C

Infants

school

FFL ±0

FCL +2,575

Top of Coping +3,435

Top of Roof +4,889

FFL ±0

FCL +2,575

Top of Coping +3,435

Top of Roof +4,889

FFL ±0

FCL +2,575

Top of Coping +3,435

Top of Roof +4,889

E-01 East Elevation

E-03 South Elevation

E-02 North Elevation

Key

0 5  M

Planning

  @ A1

December 2016

© Crown copyright and database rights
2015. All rights reserved. HCC
100019180.

16056
project

- RFT
originator

- 0A
volume

-
level

XX
type

VS- -
role

A -
number

0603

View

status suitability description

S1 Suitable for Information
revision

P03

Bishops Waltham Infant
and Junior School
Expansion from 2FE to 3FE Infant
School

Expansion from 2FE to 3FE Junior
School

Existing
School

Building

Refurbished

R
ef

ur
bi

sh
ed

Proposed
Extension

Pool

Existing

School

Building

Proposed

2 story

extension

R
efurbism

ent

to LR
C

Infants

school

C View

Key

C

Planning
  @A3

December 2016

© Crown copyright and database rights
2015. All rights reserved. HCC
100019180.

16056
project

- RFT
originator

- 0B
volume

-
level

XX
type

VS- -
role

A -
number

0602

status suitability description

S1 Suitable for Information
revision

P08

View

Bishops Waltham Junior
School
Expansion from 2FE to 3FE Junior
School

N

E0
1

E02

E03

Pool

Existing
School

Building

Proposed
2 story

extension

R
ef

ur
bi

sm
en

t
to

 L
R

C

Infants
school

E View

Key

E

Planning
  @A3

© Crown copyright and database rights
2015. All rights reserved. HCC
100019180.

16056
project

- RFT
originator

- 00
volume

-
level

XX
type

DR- -
role

A -
number

0000

status suitability description

S2 Suitable for Information
revision

P02

Location Plan

Bishops Waltham Infant
School
Expansion from 2FE to 3FE Infant
School

OAK ROAD

OAK ROAD

PINE ROAD

EL
M

 R
O

AD

PI
NE

 R
O

AD

PI
N

E 
R

O
AD

HOE ROAD

FR
EE STR

EET

HALL CLOSE

COLVILLE DRIVE

RARERIDGE LANE

N

Planning Application Boundary

Land Ownership

0 62.5 M

Existing Site Location Plan

b

a
c

d
e

3D View of Junior School Proposed Extension (Scola Reclad beyond)

Proposed Infants School Extension to East Elevation 3D View of Infants School Proposed Extension 

Planning

1:500 @ A1

December 2016

© Crown copyright and database rights
2015. All rights reserved. HCC
100019180.

16056
project

- RFT
originator

- 00
volume

-
level

XX
type

DR- -
role

A -
number

0003

Proposed Site Plan

status suitability description

S1 Suitable for Information
revision

P01

Bishops Waltham Infant
and Junior School
Expansion from 2FE to 3FE Infant
School

Expansion from 2FE to 3FE Junior
School

43
.69

43
.55

43
.40

43
.32

43.28

48
.72

48.75

48.69

48.
52

48.
24

43.77

44.67

44.79

44
.25

43
.86

43
.67

43
.67

43
.60

43
.47

43
.36

43
.27

43.18

43.19

43.21

43.27

43.73

43.28

43.17

43.38

43.41

43.18

43.19

43.24

43.14

43
.15

43
.16

43
.18

43.39

43.57

43.71

43.73

43.61

43.46

48.71

48.72

48.67

44
.42

43
.90

43
.54

43
.20

48.09

47.91

47.90

47.80

47.88

lp14

44.43

44.60

mkr

ea
ve

s 4
9.2

8

ea
ve

s 4
8.7

9

ea
ve

s 4
8.4

0

rid
ge

 50
.72

rid
ge

 50
.32

rid
ge

 49
.91

43.29

43.19

43
.29

43
.09

43
.24

43
.46

43.62

43.6843.59

43
.58

43.55

43.3743.37

45.71

43
.39

bench
43.50

43
.84

43
.31

43
.14

43
.12

42.94

42.97

42.99

43.02

43.59

43.49

43.28

43.20

43.33 43.21 43.20

43.21

43.14

43.15

43.18

43.17

43.32

43.33

43.40
43.29

42.74

42.93

43.10

43.42

43.49

43.56

43.60

43.66

43.81

43.74

43
.36

45.88

46.08

46.02

46.19

47.07

47.12
46.30

46.26

46.37

46.35

46.47

46.74

43
.66

43
.20

44.09

44.24

44
.06

43
.86

43.56

43.34

43.41

43.27

43.80

43.85
43.81

43.80

43.
65

43
.60

43
.48

43.37

43
.32

43.40
43.37

43.26
43.26

43.27

43.30
43.30 43.14

43.36
43.3943.32

43.38 43.41
43.45

43.34

43.37

43.52

43
.57

43.66 43.71
43.34

43.1943.60

43.24

43.07

43.02
42.83 42.91

42
.97

42
.72

42.44

42.75

42
.97

ex
ten

t o
f le

an
-to

 ro
of

43.07

42.86

42.90

42.91

43.05

42.98

42.98
43.00

43.19

43.44

43.43

43.47

43.33

43.35

43.33
43.36

43.20

43.19

43.34

43.91

44.07

44.26

44.82

eaves 46.51

ridge 48.81

ridge 49.29

rid
ge

 49
.62

pitched roof max. 45.85

45.78

45
.90

46
.07

46
.33

46
.59 46.57

46.62

46.60

46.17

45
.83

46
.21

46.39

46.52

46.
50

46.33
46.23

46
.20

45
.97

45
.79

46
.54

46
.73

46.98

47.03

47.09

47.09
47.02

46
.93

46
.75

45.78

ea
ve

s 5
2.4

5

rid
ge

 54
.84

eaves 52.06

ridge 53.90

42.93

46.93
46.39

46.36

46.15

47.75
47.69

47.79

48.13

47
.67

47
.51

47
.30

47.00
46.73

46.14

46
.09

46
.09

46.27

mh
cl46.75

46
.23

46
.46

47
.15

47
.76

47.72

47.55

47.85
47.77

47
.71

47.53

47
.19

47.08
47.05

46.82

46.86

46.56

46.50

46.34

47.05

47.37

47
.44

47
.71

47
.72

47
.96

47.88
gate

gate
47.75

47.70

47.91

48.32

48.45

46.11

46.08

46
.01

46.83

46.97

dra
in

g

46
.08

46
.11

46
.13

46
.12

mh
cl46.07

46
.07

46.11

mh
cl46.07

rwp

48.74

48
.60

mh
cl48.64

mh
cl48.55

mh

mh

cl48.73

cl48.70

cl48.69

gsv

48.70

ic

rwp

rwp

48.64

48.6048.50

48.38
48.18

48.27

48.31

48.37

48.63

48.68

48.68

48.72

48.76

48.74

48.48

48
.70

48
.74

48.74

48
.72

48.64

48.
43

48.
23

48.
20

48
.54

48
.60

48.78
48.71

48.67

48.65

48.73

48.65
48.64

48
.74

gate

46
.11

46
.04

46
.06

46.20

46.16

46.32

46
.07

46
.22

46.21

46.27
46.24

46
.24

46.23

46.45

46.16

46.39

46.52

46.41

mh
cl46.26

43.5343.30

46.03
45.92

45.94

45.79
45.78

45.56

45.57

45.80

45.77

45.64

45.51

45.44

45.27

45.18

44.89

44.82

44.82

44.71

46.22

46.15

46.11

46.11

46.01

45.94

45.89

45.89

45.97

46.09

46.33

46.38
46.64

46.72

46.81

46.93

46.99

47.41

47.56

45.80

45.91

45.92

46.10

46.17

46.07

46.01

45.92

45.83

45.82

45.96

45.85
45.77

43.25

43.78

tree canopy 58.71

43.59

43.54

43.34

43.45

43.25

43.20

eaves 46.91

ridge 49.46

eaves 45.16
eaves 44 .80

ridge 49 .24

eaves 47.52

ridge 50.75

ridge 54.91

eaves 52.83

ea
ve

s 5
1.9

7 eaves 51.92

ridge 54.28

rid
ge

 54
.31

42.94

43.01

43.67

43.52
43.6843.48

43.61

43.71

43.93

44.05

44.18

44.38

44.51

44.51

44.40

44.02

43.79

43.5743.57

42.89

42.59
42.25

46.38

46.19

46.04

eaves 52.77

ridge 55.25

46.18

46.06

46.16

46.09

45.96

45.91

45.30

45.37

45.45

45.47

45.56

45.63

45.73

45.86

45.92

45.57

45.56

45.46

45.38

45.31

45.24

45.22

45.12

45.06

45.03

44.70

44.73

44.77

44.81

44.77

44.87

44.96

45.02

45.14

45.10

45.23

44.94

44.80

44.75

44.66

44.56

44.42

44.33

44.38

44.44

44.42

44.20

44.15

44.12

44.01

44.02

44.10

44.15

44.25

44.31

44.35

44.35

44.04

44.02

43.95

43.91

43.79

43.67

43.63

43.82

43.8143.92

43.71

43.23

43.38

43.54

43.57

43.64

43.43

43.36

43.30

43.12

ep

44.43

44.65

44.79

44.93

44.85

44.73

44.60

U/0.9 stump

45.01

45.15

44.95
45.06

45.22

45.52

45.30

45.22

45.40

45.47

45.50

45.51

46.62
46.63

46.66

46.60

45.71

45.80
45.8545.87

45
.88

45.65
45.41

45.26
45.03

44.75

44.15

43.18
43.17

42.35

45.63

ep

rwp

48.64

48.58
rwp

48.57

48.67

48.64

48.65 mh

48.71

48.71
48.68

48.69

48
.69

48.69

48.66

48.66

48.62

gate

48.65

48
.72

48
.72

48.70
48.7048

.70
48

.64

42.76

42.44

42.19

41.99

41.81

41.51

40.96

40.74

40.61

40.86

40.94
40.98

41.11

41.31

41.57

41.71

41.95

42.27

lp3

42.44

42.15

41.92

41.70

41.41

41.06

40.77

40.69

40.87

41
.07

41
.20

rs

41.20

41.50

41.74

42.18

rs (disused)

mh
cl41.86

mh
cl40.85

41.12

ep

ep

U/1500 stump

42.44

43.07

42.79

47
.67

47.65

47.54

47.50

47.61

47.39

47.25

47.46

47.29

44.00

45.00

C70

C54

C62

43.50

44.50

45.50

C11

C13

C14

C20

C50

C51

C52

C53

C55

C56

C65

C60

C67

C63

C64

EL/0.18/3/8

A/0.2/5/10
swimming pool

1.6
m 

hig
h p

kf

Y/0.5/5/11

Y/0.15/3/8

PO/1.5/10/25
tarmac footpath

U/0.3/5/9

tarm
ac 

foo
tpa

th

tarmac footpath

paving

1.0m high prf

SY/0.4/8/12
LO/0.8/8/12

B/0.9/8/18

SY/0.3/5/14

SY/0.18/3.5/6

SY/0.3/6/16

CH/0.4/5/8

SB/0.4/6/12

F/0.15/3/5

F/0.23/2/8

SB/0.5/5/15

OK/0.9/3.5/7

SY/0.2/6/0

OK/0.28/5/11

HC/0.2/3/8

OK/0.2/5/13.5

OK/0.4/8/10

U/0.35/6/7
PO/0.5/8.5/17

OK/0.4/4/8

EL/0.2/3/10

SY/0.3/7/11

PO/0.55/8/18

SY/0.26/8/6
LO/1.08/6/12

SY/0.4/4/10

Y/0.2/1.5/4.5

HZ/0.8/4/8

2.0
 hi

gh
 se

cu
rity

 fe
nc

e

2.0 high security fence

2.0 high security fence

1.55m high brick wall

dropped kerb

1.3m high brick wall + 0.9m cbf

SB/0.53/6/10

1.8m high cbf

1.2
m 

hig
h c

pw
mf

2.2m high shrubs

AP/0.17/3/7

SB/0.3/4/12

LM/0.48/9/15

OK/0.2/4/12

SY/0.29/5/12

CH/0.42/7/12

HZ/0.15/5/9

CH/0.25/5/8

CH/0.23/4/11

AP/0.24/2/5

U/0.14/4/6

B/1.2/13/23

B/0.96/11/19

HC/0.75/8.5/18

B/0.3/4/12

EL/0.3/5/9

F/0.7/5/14

P/0.5/4/10

P/0.4/4/11

EL/0.3/4/7

B/0.45/5/14.5

Y/0.4/5/10

P/0.45/5/14

FM/0.25/4/10

U/0.15/2/10
FM/0.25/3/10

OK/0.2/5/5

OK/0.3/9/14.5

FM/0.2/3/9

W/0.6/5.5/10

W/0.6/7/8

LO/0.6/8/17

U/0.35/4/13

FR/0.16/3/5

F/0.9/3.5/13

F/0.6/3.5/13

1m high brambles

5m willow trees

3m willow
trees

1.8
m 

hig
h c

bf

1m high brambles

1.5m high hedge

planters

planters

planters

2.0
 hi

gh
 se

cu
rity

 fe
nc

e
tre

llis
 fe

nc
e

1.2m wmf

1.2m high wmf

1.2m high cpwmf

1.2m high cpwmf

2m brambles

ic

gate

cl48.92

tar
ma

c f
oo

tpa
th

1m high hedge

gravel

paving

shed

1.2m high wmfbrambles
2m shrubs

1.5
m sh

rub
s

prf

no defined
boundary

7m high
small trees

1.2
m 

hig
h h

ed
ge

4m shrubs

cp
f +

 w
mf

 (p
oo

r)

1.8
m 

bra
mb

les

1m shrub

gate

5m willows

pond

3m brambles

SY/1.1/13/21.5

SB/.4/6/12

8m small trees

43.64

dropped kerb
grass verge

tarmac

g gate

tarmac footpath

1.30m high brick wall

concrete footpath

container

concrete building

grass

grass

concrete base

gate

1.8m cbf

2.4m high cpwmf
g

g

g

tarmac playground

tarmac playground

tarmac footpath

3m high hedge

grass

1.2
m 

cp
wm

f

3m high hedge

3m high hedge

g

g

g

canopy of 10m tree

2.4m high cpwmf

gate

2.5m high cbf
2.4m cpwmf

4m high hedge

5m high willow

3m high shrubs

brick wallwt.44.30

single storey extension out of view

2m high shrubs

1.2m  high cpwmf

g

astroturf and play
equipment sign

grass

0.4
m 

prf

concrete

0.4
m 

prf

bench

concrete

45.00

45.00

45.00

44.50

45.50

45.50

parapet 49.74

pa
rap

et 
49

.75

pa
rap

et 
53

.12

parapet 49.57

max roof 49.04

eaves 48.39

eaves 48.73
max roof 49.15

ma
x r

oo
f 4

7.5
8

ridge 51.89

eaves 50.35

mh
cl45.96

ws
v

cl4
5.8

8

gs
v

cl4
5.7

4

mh

mh

cl45.85

cl45.72

sign

FL
45.24

sign
45.27

mh

mh

cl45.37

cl46.03

45.55

45.75

sv
cl45.63

gsv
cl45.33

mh
cl45.80

46.23

46.01

45.88

gsv
cl45.64

45.23

FL
44.49

2m high
sapling

44.85

45.24

45.51

44.61

44.79

45.05

wsv
cl45.79

fh
cl45.66

sv cl45.65
wsv
cl45.49

mkr

mh
cl45.10

eaves 51.47

fla
t ro

of 
49

.33

svp

svp

rwprwp

mh
cl45.96

re
cl46.04

mh
mhcl46.00
cl45.99

mh
cl46.07

drain

mh
cl46.06

eaves 51.49

46.38

45.52

45.13

44.65

45.14

44.83

44.67

44.9944.95

44.37

44.40

44.45

44.58
44.72

44.80

44.95

lb
45.16

45.93

bench

bench

paving

paving

pa
vin

g

paving

paving

paving

pa
vin

g

pa
vin

g

paving

timber seating

timber seating

paving

bench

45.40

45.42

45.26

g
cl44.70

45
.50

45
.26

45.27 45.34

45.20

44.90

44.94

44.65

44.56

44.4644.43

44.35

44.18

lb
45.40

pa
rap

et 
53

.11

gro
un

d f
loo

r
wi

nd
ow

first floor
window
h 51.33

ridge 53.34

h 4
8.7

5

c 4
8.0

8

fla
t ro

of 
49

.28

ea
ve

s 5
2.7

1

parapet 49.74

pa
rap

et 
49

.74

fla
t ro

of 
50

.42

pa
rap

et 
51

.60

pa
rap

et 
53

.12

mh

mh

cl46.12

cl46.13

mh

mh
cl46.09

cl46.11
gu46.10

mh
cl46.04

47.81

48.07

tp
46.70

bolbol

bol

bol

46.5546.43

46.40

46.27

47.30

rid
ge

 54
.26

rid
ge

 54
.49ea
ve

s 5
2.6

8

gsv
cl46.06

parapet 51.59

parapet 49.74

ea
ve

s 4
8.2

4

ma
x r

oo
f 4

8.8
3

mh
cl46.07

48.70

48.62

3m high shrub &
5m high small trees

rwp

re
cl46.06

C1

C10

C11

C12

C14 C15

C16

C17

C19

C2

C20

C21

C22

C3

C4

C5

C6

C7

C8

C9

JUNIOR SCHOOL

PI
NE

 R
OA

D

No.8

No.6

No.8

No.1

No.4

No.2

OAK ROAD

JUNIOR SCHOOL

BISHOPS WALTHAM

BISHOPS WALTHAM

canopy of
av 5m high small trees

OK/0.9/12.5/19

SY/0.35/5/14

OK/0.75/14/21

HC/0.7/8/22

PL/0.7/10/24
HO/0.75/11/22

HY/0.22/3.5/7

SY/0.19/4.5/9
EL/0.18/3.5/7

A/0.6/5/12

F/0.35/4/10

F/0.25/4/8

SC/0.18/2.5/7

F/0.35/3.5/13

CH/0.17/2.5/5

F/0.9/5/11

F/0.7/4/15

RO/0.15/2/9

U/0.18/5/7

U/0.2/3.5/8

U/0.4/6/10

U/0.4/6/13
RD/0.5/10/18

FM/0.18/4/8

CH/0.1/3/5

OK/0.7/10/18

FM/0.16/6.5/8

FM/0.15/5.5/7

av 4m high
small trees

av 4m high
small trees

RD/0.55/9.5/16

CH/0.15/5/7

SY/0.15/3/11

FM/0.15/2/9

FM/0.15/3/8

FM/0.17/4/11
FM/0.15/4/7

FM/0.17/2.5/10

FM/0.15/3.5/11
FM/0.15/4/11

FM/0.17/4/11

EU/0.6/9/21

F/0.3/3/8

6m high
small trees

SY/0.15/5/10

OK/0.2/3.5/9

OK/0.22/4.5/9

SB/0.22/3/13
SB/0.2/3.5/15

SB/0.2/3/14
FM/0.15/4/10

FM/0.25/5/10

FM/0.2/4/10

FM/0.23/4/9

FM/0.2/3.5/11FM/0.23/4.5/11

FM/0.15/4/11

FM/0.3/4/11

concrete
post

pc

3-6m high
shrub

1.2
m 

hig
h i

rf

1.2
m 

hig
h i

rf tarmac footpath

grass

grass

grass
grass

grass

grass

grass

grass

grass

grass

gra
ss

1.2m high irf

1.2
m 

hig
h i

rf

channel blocks

dropped

bench

bench

bench

bench

bench

block retaining wall

block retaining wall

2m hedge

2m hedge

2m hedge

2m hedge

2m hedge

gates

paving
(retaining)

brick wall

gates

g

g

1.6
m 

hig
h s

hru
b

1.6m high shrub

timber edging

concrete

speed hump

speed hump

speed hump

concrete

tarmac

grass

grass

tarmac

tarmac

tarmac

gas
pipe

steps

concrete
edging

1.5m high shrub

col

col

col

col

col

col

col

col

pa
vin

g

co
nc

ret
e

ca
no

py
(ba

rre
l ro

of)

canopy
(barrel roof)

canopy(barrel roof)

tarmac

planter

planter

timber planter
av 3m high shrub
timber

concrete

1.5
m 

hig
h h

ed
ge

3m shrub

timber wall

timber wall

timber wall

timber retaining wall

tim
be

r e
dg

ing

steps

timber retaining wall

timber retaining wall

timber retaining wall

retaining
wall

ste
ps

rai
lin

g

grass bund

amphitheatre

tar
ma

c f
oo

tpa
th

3.5
m 

hig
h s

hru
b1m high prf

1m
 hi

gh
 pr

f

2m high shrub

3-5m high shrub
& small trees

co
nc

ret
e

co
nc

ret
e

1m high shrub

1m
 hi

gh
 sh

rub

g

pc

pc

concrete

concrete

metal frame work

brick retaining wall

bri
ck

 re
tai

nin
g w

all

brick retaining wallpaving

paving

tarmac

1.2m high pkf

1.2m high cpwmf
1.2m wpf

1m high hedge

7m high small  trees

ste
ps

rai
lin

gs

rai
lin

gs

1.5m high
h+m fence

tarmac path

4m high yew

1.6m high cpwmf

1.6m high cpwmf

1.2m high spwmf

1.7m high shrub

2-4m high small
trees & shrub

av
 2.

5m
 hi

gh
 sh

rub

av
 2.

5m
 hi

gh
 sh

rub

dro
pp

ed

dro
pp

ed
bik

e s
he

d

2m
 hi

gh
 sh

rub

ret
ain

ing
 w

all

1.8
m 

hig
h t

rel
lis

0.9
m 

hig
h c

pw
mf

1.2
m 

hig
h c

pw
mf

1.2
m 

hig
h c

pw
mf

1.9
m 

hig
h c

bf

1.9
m 

hig
h c

bf

gate

g

gate
1.2m high cbf

gate

steps

pc

pc

pc

1m
 sh

rub

1m
 sh

rub

parking bays

tarmac

tarmac

tarmac

parking bays

pa
rki

ng
 ba

ys

parking bays

0.8
d

0.8
d

0.8
d

0.2d

0.8
d

0.1d
0.2d

x2
CR

0.0
5d

CR

0.5d

Weak
signal
0.5d

0.4d 0.3d 0.4d
0.5d

0.4d

0.3d

0.4d

CR 0.3d

0.4
d

0.4
d

0.4
d

electrical
cabinet
UTT

AR

100

10
0

100

il45.63

il45.59

il45.48

TFR

TFR

TFR

rwp

concrete
post

concrete
post

46
.12

cables

1m
 hi

gh
 pr

f

1m
 hi

gh
 pr

f

pa
vin

g

FREE STREET

ST. PETER'S HALL

LEE FARM HOUSE

LEE FARM COTTAGE

No.40

No.41

No.42

No.11

No.10

No.8

RIDGEMEAD LODGE

properties fronting Hall Close

42.7242.7642.71

42.95

42.50

42.31

41.83

41.6141.79

42.01

42.22

tc

42.12

tp

42.10
42.12

42.11

42.24

42.31
42.37

42.53
42.61

42.81

42.76
42.71

wsv
cl42.66

tp

43.42

45.43

45.24

45.05

46.04

46.16

46.14 46.11

46.14

C66

C75

2.4m high brick wall

g

dropped kerb

1m high brick wall

block paving

2.5m shrub

grass

tarmac footpath

8m high small trees

brambles

1.8m high wpf

6m elder

3m high shrubs

2m high brambles

5m high small trees

OK/0.22/5/12

2m high hedge

3m high hedge

3m high hedge

1.5m high hedge

2m high hedge

HW/0.2/3/8

AP/0.1/2.5/4

AP/0.2/3/4

FR/0.15/3/5

U/0.15/3/5

U/0.2/5/7

SB/0.3/4/13 SB/0.35/5/13

W/0.2/6/8

2m high shrubs

W/0.18/6/10

1.2m high pkf

49.30

gate

dra
in

1.2
m hig

h p
kf

1.6
m 

hig
h p

kf

1.6m high pkf

1.8m high wall

overhead power cable

overhead telecom cable

SY

52.02

52.24

52.33

52.35

52.80

52.66

51.45

51.84

52.06

51.97

52.14

52.57

52.81

51.12

roof 54.28

ea
ve

s 5
7.8

4

rid
ge

 59
.98

rid
ge

 62
.51ea

ve
s 5

8.2
6

52.92

52.88

51.55

52.11

51.92

51.75

50.63

51.02

51.20

51.08

51.39

51.26

51.14

50.9550.82

50.70

50.37

ridge 58.68

ea
ve

s 5
3.7

2

roo
f 5

5.2
1

eaves 56.08

eaves 56.24

ridge 57.28

50.27

50.35

50.78

50.45

50.13

49.82

49.67

49.36

48.64

49.55

49.08

49.16

48.69

48.62

48.68

48.39

48.29

ea
ve

s 5
3.8

9rid
ge

 56
.32

50.34

50.20

50.13

49.62
49.32

49.06

49.8449.04

49.71

49.76

49.29

50.43

g

g

gate

gate

gates

gate

gate

49.71

48.70

49.90

50.42

50.55

50.96

51.30
51.2651.26

gate

52.93

53.20

52.99

52.27

mh
cl49.19

49.09

50.05

50.11

50.01

mh
cl48.98

48.77

49.10

49.24

48.81

48.70

48.30

48.74

gates

49.01

49.37

49.66

49.44

48.72

48.59

48.39

B13

B14

B20

B21

B22

B31

C61

U/0.2/4/12

A/0.15/3/10

Y/0.18/3/5

SB/0.38/4/15

SY/0.35/5/16

OK/0.45/7/15

HZ/0.6/5/7

SY/0.5/6/15

HW/0.18/4/8

CH/0.18/4/10

LM/0.6/6/15

SY/0.38/6/15

SY/0.35/6/14SY/0.2/5/13

F/0.18/1.8/4

U/0.8 stump

HW/0.18/4/8

HZ/0.5/4/6
A/0.35/8/17

A/0.3/7/15

HZ/0.5/3/5

A/0.38/6/19

A/0.3/7/16

A/0.48/7/19

B/0.9/9/20

A/0.35/5/19

B/0.18/6/12

A/0.3/4/18
A/0.3/4/17

brambles

3.5m high
shrubs

5m high shrubs

greenhouse

1.5
m 

hig
h p

kf
1m

 hi
gh

 pk
f

decking

pond

paving

8m high trees

gate

benches

0.4m planters

3m laurel

astroturf + play equipment

grass

grass

grass

grass

grass

grass

1.2m high cpf
1.2m high cpf

1.2m high cpf

1.2m high cpf

1.2m high cpf

1.2
m hi

gh
 cp

f

1.2
m 

hig
h c

pf

1.2
m 

hig
h c

pf

1.2
m 

hig
h c

pf

1.2m high cpf
centreline of firs

canopy of 2.8m firs

5m laurel
1.8m high wpf1.8m high wpf

1.9m high spwmf

play equipment

play equipment

decking

decking

tarmac playground

2m
 hi

gh
 sp

wm
f

2m
 hi

gh
 sp

wm
f

2m
 hi

gh
 sp

wm
f

shelter

1.8
m 

hig
h c

bf

U/0.6 stump

Y/0.17/3.5/7

SY/0.28/6/15

HW/0.3/4/12

SY/0.35/4/16
A/0.45/6/17

HC/0.3/6/15

SY/0.38/4/16

SY/0.4/6/16

A/0.2/3/16

HC/0.7/6/16

A/0.5/7/18

A/0.3/5/18

HY/0.25/5/12

A/0.15/4/10

SY/0.3/6/17

A/0.2/4/14

SY/0.15/3/9

HZ/0.8/5/9

SY/0.15/3/12

HC/0.9/8/17

SY/0.5/4/7

SY/0.4/10/18

HW/0.3/5/12

OK/0.6/7/16

HW/0.15/4/7

HW/0.2/3/5
HY/0.2/4/9

SY/0.4/4/7

PO/1/12/29.5

LR/0.2/6/9

HY/0.25/5/11

SY/0.6/10/18

Y/0.2/3/4 (APP)

1.8m high wpf

1.8m high wpf

1.8m high wpf

6m laurel

6m high holly

4m shrubs

low timber wall

SY/0.38/7/19

AL/0.35/5/14

OK/0.65/8/17

face of holly

2.5m high
shrubs

6m laurel

6m high
small trees

4m holly

3m holly
4m holly

4m holly

2m high shrubs

4m
 sm

all 
tre

es

FM/0.2/6.5/15

AL/0.22/2/15

FM/0.3/7/16
EL/0.15/3/6

AL/0.18/1.5/15

AL/0.18/2/16
FM/0.4/8/15

HZ/0.7/6/5

SY/0.18/1.5/14
FM/0.18/3/15

FM/0.4/7/13

SY/0.15/1.5/14
SY/0.15/2/14

SB/0.3/5/15
HZ/0.8/7/10

FM/0.3/3/9

U/0.17/3/9

FM/0.6/6/15

FM/0.18/4/11

FM/0.4/7.5/15

FM/0.2/6/11

U/0.2/6/8

FM/0.35/6/11

CH/0.35/6/14

3m high shrubs

0.4
m 

hig
h p

rf

0.4m high prf

0.4
m 

hig
h p

rf

SY/0.6/6/15
tag 3195

paving

paving

paving

paving

SY/0.3/6/9

CH/0.1/2/8

SY/0.3/2/9

ea
ve

s 5
2.7

2

rid
ge

 54
.25

rid
ge

 54
.52

ea
ve

s 5
2.6

7

ch
an

ne
l

rs

49.49

49.65

49.77

49.75

49.99

50.16

50.28

SLOW

g

lp

rs

49.65

49.73

49.68

49.63

49.52

49.29

49.53

50.43

50.69

52.07

52.23

sign

rs

tp

fh
wsv

mh
cl47.75

sign

49.19

49.08

49.13

rs

50.20
lp

tc
cl50.26

g

50.38

roof 52.81

roof 54.71

roof 53.04

roof 54.51
roof 53.11

roof 54.53

mh
cl50.16

mh
cl50.34

KEEP
CLEAR

mh
cl50.26

mh
cl50.23

bol

bol

bol

g

roof 53.07

roof 54.52

roo
f 5

3.7
4

roo
f 5

2.7
7

roof 53.08

roof 54.53

52.24

52.31

52.28

52.25

52.33

52.23

52.77

52.65

52.50

52.38

51.80

52.21

51.69

50.93

51.08

52.81

50.98

51.19

50.93

51.55

g mh
cl50.27

drain

mh
cl50.23

g

g

roo
f 5

5.0
1

roo
f 5

2.5
0

roo
f 5

1.7
4

roof 51.74

roo
f 5

4.3
3

roof 54.33

bol

roo
f 5

2.9
3

roo
f 5

7.1
3

g

51.06

52.19

52.25

52.25
52.11

52.49
52.31

52.40
52.38

52.42

52.37

52.51

52.47

52.66

ridge 62.90

ridge 63.36

49.68

49.17

49.25

49.42

49.54

play equipment
51.06

bench

bench

picnic bench

picnic bench

va
lle

y 6
3.4

9rid
ge

 66
.26

eaves 56.77

ridge 58.72

rid
ge

 58
.23

ea
ve

s 5
5.0

3

52.30

53.20

eaves 59.08

ridge 63.15

ridge 62.69

eaves 58.64

eaves 59.19

rid
ge

 61
.19

ridge 63.30

B1

B2

B3

B4

B8

B9

B10

B12

B13

B14

B15

B16

SY/0.6/9/20

M/0.38/5/12

M/0.15/3.5/9

M/0.17/4/8

M/0.7/7/10

SY/0.55/6/17
tag3201

HO/0.7/10/16

SY/1.1/10/21 tag3198

SY/0.5/6/16

LO/0.25/6/10

block paving

grass

grass

grass

grass

grass

grass

grass

grass

grass

1m pkf

1.6m high pkf

1.6
m 

hig
h p

kf

1.6m high pkf

1.6
m 

hig
h p

kf

brick wall

brick wall

brick wall

overhead telecom line

tarmac footpath

tarmac footpath

tar
ma

c f
oo

tpa
th

W/0.18/4/10

W/0.35/5/12

W/0.3/6/12

W/0.38/6/13

W/0.35/5/13

W/0.28/5/10

LO/0.5/8.5/16

LO/0.5/7/16

W/0.3/5.5/13

A/0.15/7/13

LM/0.38/5/12

W/0.35/6/10

LM/0.25/3/10

A/0.4/7/11

LO/0.38/7/15

W/0.38/6/13

W/0.35/5/13

W/0.3/6/13

W/0.2/6/13

W/0.3/5/13

W/0.28/5/13

gate

gate

gate

speed hump

gates

g
U/0.18/5/6

tarmac

tarmac

tarmac

tarmac

tarmac

tarmac

tarmac

timber
post

0.9m high pkf

1m
 hi

gh
 irf

1m high irf

1.9
m 

hig
h s

pw
mf1m shrub

1m high hedge

gates

0.8m rail

1.2m high pkf

3m shrub

rwp

rwp

rwp

rwp

rwp

rwp

rwprwp

rwp

rwp

rwp

rwp

rwp

rwp

rwp

rwp

rwp

rwp

1m
 sh

rub
s

1m shrubs brickedging

steps

paving

step

paving

gate

1.8
m hi

gh
 cb

f

g

0.6m timber
planters

concrete

paving

shed

shed

shed

paving

brick

1.2m hedge

1.6m high hedge

1.6m high hedge

2m hedge

car parking

car parking

car parking

brick wall

brick wall

brick wall

1m high irf

1m high irf

1.2m high pkf

paving

brick edging

playhouse

steps

steps

bri
ck 

ed
gin

g

br
ick

 ed
gin

g

brick edging

brick edging

brick edging
brick edging

brick edging

brick
 edging

brick edging

brick edging

bri
ck 

ed
gin

g

low shrubs

CH/0.25/5/8

rail

rail

0.5m high wall

1.2m high pkf

tarmac ramp

1m shrubs

AL/0.3/5/16

AL/0.4/7/17

A/0.35/7/17

SY/0.15/7/8

FM/0.15/3.5/8

FM/0.17/5/9

A/0.25/5/15

A/0.17/5/13

A/0.15/4/11

A/0.4/9/17

SY/0.18/5/14
A/0.25/4/18

SY/0.15/4/12
SY/0.28/4/16

A/0.45/4/18

A/0.25/4/17

A/0.3/5/17

5m high hazel

OK/0.5/8/18

SY/0.4/7/16

SY/0.28/4/17

SY/0.25/6/15

A/0.38/7/17

SY/0.22/5/13

P/0.9/7/23

A/0.2/5/14

FM/0.2/5/10

FM/0.2/5/10

OK/0.22/3.5/12

OK/0.18/4/12 LO/0.3/7/14

LO/0.28/6/15

B/0.7/9/19

LR/0.17

2m high laurel

canopy of 8m
high hazels

6m high laurel

6m high laurel

6m high laurel

1.2
m hi

gh
 pk

f

gates

LR/0.2

LR/0.15

LR/0.18

A/0.7/9/18

M/0.4/9/14

A/0.22/6/11

CH/0.18/8/7

flint retaining wall

LO/0.35/7.5/16

B/0.4/5/15

LR/0.2 1.2m high cpwmf

1.2m high cpwmf

cp
f (p

oo
r)

1.2m high irf

1.2m high irf
4m high small trees

3m shrubs + 6m trees

playing field

playing field

swings

swings

springers

springers

paving

paving

gate

gate

gate

climbing frame

slide

SY/0.22/6/16 SY/0.2/5/13

SY/0.6/9/17

SY/0.65/7/17

U/0.18/3.5/9

8m high laurel and small trees

gates

Y/0.2/3/5

1.8m high cbf

1.8m high cbf

1m
 hi

gh
 irf

1m
 hi

gh
 irf

1m high irf

1m high irf

shed

No.1

No.3

No.5

No.7

No.9

No.13

Ridgemead House

No.5

No.7

No.3

No.1

No.9

No.9

No.9

No.8

No.4

No.3

No.2

No.17

No.11

No.15

OAK ROAD

No.8

BISHOPS WALTHAM
INFANT SCHOOL

properties fronting Cedar Court

properties fronting Gunners Mews

properties fronting Elm road

1.5m cbf + 0.5m high trellis

2m high cbf

SY/0.8/1/4 stump
tag 0004

SY/0.4/5/9
SY/0.4/4/13

SY/0.6/6/13
tag 3173

SY/0.25/3/10

SY/0.9/8/13
tag 3175

HW/0.18/1.5/4 SY/0.45/4/10
tag 3177

Y/0.6/4/8
tag 3176

climbing frame

7m small trees

concrete

SY/0.34/4/8
tag 0042

SY/0.5/8/16
tag 0041

SY/0.4/6/13

SY/0.47/6.5/13
tag 3183

SY/0.7/6/12
tag 3182

SY/0.75/8/12
tag 3181

SY/0.48/6/12
tag 3180

SY/0.6/6/12

1.2
m 

hig
h c

pw
mf

1.2
m 

hig
h c

pw
mf

1.2
m 

hig
h i

rf

1.2
m 

hig
h i

rf

1.2
m 

hig
h i

rf

dog waste

LR/0.3/5/10

LR/0.3/5/10

9m high small trees

pkf

HO/0.85/9/16

SY/1.3 stump

SY/1.3/13/20

CH/0.4/5/10

CH/0.25/5/9

U/0.18/2/5

shed
shed

shed

playhouse
playhouse

sandpit

sandpit

play equipment

play equipment

timber sleepers

paving

grass

grass

gate

climbing frame

playhouse

1m high pkf
1.4m high wmf

1.6m high pkf

1.6m high pkf

3m willows

paving

tarmac footpath

1.6m high hit and miss 
fence

mh
cl49.07

g

g

roof 52.08

roof 54.22

roof 54.22

roof 52.03

mh
cl48.78

mh
cl48.71

50.11

roof 52.00

roof 52.06

roof 52.06

roof 54.26

roo
f 5

4.2
6

g
48.99

mh
cl49.01

roo
f 5

2.0
1

ro
of 

54
.27

ro
of 

52
.01

roof 51.97

roof 54.29

mh
cl48.36

48.46

48.46

B40

B41

tarmac

tarmac

tarmac

tarmac

playhouse

1.5m shrub

FM/0.22/5/15

AL/0.15/3.5/13

AL/0.2/4/14

SY/0.35/5/16
SY/0.35/5/17 AL/0.22/3.5/15

FM/0.3/8/13

SY/0.18/2/15

SY/0.15/2/14

co
nc

.

AL/0.15/2.5/14

3m shrubs

5m small tree

4m laurel

2m
 hi

gh
 br

am
ble

s

5m
 hi

gh
 he

dg
e

50.00

51.00

52.00

49.50

50.50

51.50

CR

0.2d

0.3d

0.3d

0.3d

0.4d

0.7d
0.5 d

0. 5d

0.5d

0.5d

0.4
d

0.3
d

0.3d
0.3d

0.6
d

0.5
d

0.4d

0.6d

0.5d

0.5
d

0.4
d

0.3
d

0.3d

0.3
d

0.4d

0.4
d

0.4
d

0.4
d

EO
T

EOT

0.3d

0.3d
LP

Cables 0.3d
Pit 0.52d

AR
No signal

5m high small trees

OAK ROAD

OAK ROAD

EL
M

 R
O

AD

PI
NE

 R
O

AD

PI
N

E 
R

O
AD

HOE ROAD

FR
EE STR

EET

HALL CLOSE

COLVILLE DRIVE

RARERIDGE LANE

N

Existing Pedestrian Access

Existing Vehicular Access

Site Boundary

Key:

1.   Reception & Waiting
2.   General Office
3.   Head Teacher
4.   Staff Room
5.   WCs
6.   Kitchen & Servery
7.   Plant & Non-teaching Stores
8.   Hall
9.   Classrooms - Reception
10. Classrooms - Key Stage 1&2
11. Learning Resource / Library
12. Specialist Practical
13. Studio/ Small Hall/ Music & Drama
14. Small Group Room (SEN)
15. ICT Suite
16. Car Park
17. Games Court
18. Hard Play
19. Soft Play
20. Habitat
21. Pitch

N
on

-T
ea

ch
in

g
Te

ac
hi

ng
Ex

te
rn

al

Land Ownership

PROPOSED NEW
PEDESTRIAN ACCESS WITH
HIGHWAY CROSSING

0 25 M

11

9
10

10

10

4

Small vehicledeliveries only

keepclear

keepclear

Nursery

9

10

10

10

13
8

7
3

21

10

10

10

10

13

2 1
3

2
4

8

7

6

7
7

6

4

9

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29
30

31
32

Yr R

Yr 1

Yr 1

Yr 1

Yr R Yr R

New FF&E only

column

column

CO
UR

TY
AR

D

column

column

column

1.21m high wall

column

column

column

column

column

column

column

rwp

rwp

column

column

column

column

rwp

column

ON GRID

HALL

RECEPTION

HALL

column

el
ec

. s
er

vic
es

pa
ne

ls

column

co
lu

m
n

co
lu

m
n

co
lu

m
n

rwp

rwp

rwp

rwp

bh
1.98

building Survey not updated beyond this line

building Survey not updated beyond this line

high internal wall line

+52.58wall top

wall top 50.49

hig
h 

str
uc

tu
ra

l w
all

lin
e 

ab
ov

e 
tim

be
r

hig
h 

wi
n.

f-c
 3

.1
0

c-
h 

0.
63

high win. continues above

f-c 3.11 c-h 0.62
+51.68wall top

high wall line

Not to Scale

February 2017

Bishops Waltham Infants 
and Junior School 
1FE Extension to a 3FE Infants
1FE Extension to a 3FE Junior

Proposed Site & Building 

Project Appraisal

1
2
3
4

5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12

Existing Infants School
Proposed Infants School Extension
Existing Infant Car Park
Proposed Relocated and Additional 
Infant Car Parking
Infant Playing Field
Junior Playing Field
Community Playing Area
Existing Junior School
Proposed Junior School Extension
Existing Junior Car Park
Proposed Additional Junior Car Parking
Proposed Footpath from Free Street.

 

P10648 - A - 100 Rev -

Pedestrian Access

Vehicular Access

Contractor Access

Key to Proposed Site Plan:

a
b
c
d
e

Infants School
Junior School
School Swimming Pool
Junior School Sports Pitch
Community Play Area

Key to Location Plan:

Development Boundary

Non-Teaching - Refurbishment.

Teaching - New Build

Teaching - Refurbishment.

Non-Teaching - New Build

© Crown Copyright and database rights 
2016. All rights reserved. HCC 
100019180.

Site Boundary

N

N

Proposed Site Plan; Infants School (North) and Junior School (South)

5

7

4

3

1

2

8

9

10

11

12

6

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Romsey Primary School 1 FE Expansion
	Romsey Primary School 1FE Expansion -  Plan
	[TMS] [Drawing Number]- Ground Floor A3


	2 Bishops Waltham Infant and Junior Schools Expansion
	EME Bishops Waltham Infant and Junior Schools Expansion - Plan
	[TMS] [Drawing Number]- Ground Floor A3



